
 

 
 
Notice of meeting of  

 
Gambling & Licensing Acts Committee 

 
To: Councillors Merrett (Chair), Alexander, Ayre, Horton, 

Hyman, Looker, Moore, Orrell, Pierce, Reid, Runciman, 
Taylor, B Watson and Wiseman (Vice-Chair) 
 

Date: Friday, 3 September 2010 
 

Time: 2.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 
 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or 

prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this 
agenda. 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 3 - 6) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 18 June 

2010. 
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Committee’s remit can do so.  The deadline 
for registering is 5:00 pm on Thursday  2nd September 2010. 
 



 
 
4. Licensing Act 2003 - Update.   (Pages 7 - 14) 
 This report seeks to provide Members with an update on the 

current local position on the impact of the Licensing Act 2003, up 
to the 31st March 2010. 
 
 

5. Licensing Act 2003 - Rebalancing the 
Licensing Act.   

(Pages 15 - 50) 

 This report advises Members of recent consultation from the 
Home Office entitled “Rebalancing the Licensing Act”. It seeks 
Members approval regarding the Councils response to the 
consultation. 
 
 

6. Any other business which the Chair considers 
urgent under the  Local Government Act 1972   

 

 

Democracy Officer: 
 
Name: Laura Bootland 
Contact Details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 552062 
• E-mail – laura.bootland@york.gov.uk 

 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting Laura 
Bootland  
 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

 
 
 
 
 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (38 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Advisory Panel (EMAP)) agenda. 
The Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date 
and will set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 

necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

MEETING GAMBLING & LICENSING ACTS COMMITTEE 

DATE 18 JUNE 2010 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS MERRETT (CHAIR), HORTON, 
LOOKER, MOORE, ORRELL, PIERCE, TAYLOR 
AND B WATSON 

APOLOGIES COUNCILLORS ALEXANDER, AYRE, HYMAN, 
REID, RUNCIMAN AND WISEMAN 

 
PART A - MATTERS CONSIDERED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS. 

 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
Councillor Taylor declared a personal non-prejudicial interest as his place 
of work is within the proposed CIZ. 
 
Councillor Pierce declared a personal non-prejudicial interest as he is 
acquainted with respondent 005 as detailed on page 35 of the agenda. 
 
Councillor Merrett declared a personal non prejudicial interest as he the 
Ward Councillor for respondent 009 as detailed on page 39 of the agenda. 
 
 

2. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 58 February 

2010 be approved and signed by the Chair as a 
correct record. 

 
 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak under the 
Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
 

4. LICENSING ACT 2003 - MINOR VARIATIONS.  
 
Members considered a report which advised them on the number and type 
of applications received for Minor Variations to Premises Licences and 
Club Premise Certificates following the Legislative Reform order that came 
into force in July 2009 which enables licensing authorities to receive and 
determine minor variations. 
 
Officers outlined the report and had attached a list of the applications 
received at Annex 1. They advised that applicants are now being proactive 
and are calling the licensing department to check first whether something 
can be dealt with as a minor variation. The Council’s Environmental 

Agenda Item 2Page 3



Protection Unit are also discussing applications with Licence holders to 
agree additional licence conditions to go alongside variations where 
necessary. 
 
Members noted the report and approved the officer recommendation. 
 
RESOLVED: That Members approved Option 2 and instructed 

Officers to provide an annual update, which will be 
included in the annual report to Members on the 
Licensing Act 2003.1 

 
REASON: To keep Members informed of the effect of their 

Licensing Policy. 
 
Action Required  
1. Licensing Officers to add annual report on Minor 
Variations to Work Plan.   
 
 

 
JL  

 
PART B - MATTERS REFERRED TO COUNCIL. 

 
5. REVIEW OF CUMULATIVE IMPACT ZONE.  

 
Members considered a report which sought approval to change the 
boundary of the Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ). The proposed changes are 
as a result of consultation on a report received from North Yorkshire Police 
detailing changing patterns of crime and disorder in the City Centre. 
  
The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2008-2011 includes a policy 
on cumulative impact for part of the city centre. The effect of the special 
policy is to create a rebuttable presumption that applications for new 
premises or material variations would normally be refused if relevant 
representation are received. Full details can be found at Section 6 of the 
Council’s Licensing Policy. The boundary of the CIZ zone was approved at 
Council in April 2005, based on the patterns of crime and disorder at that 
time. 
  
North Yorkshire Police submitted a report to the Council in January 2010 
requesting that the boundaries of the zone be amended to reflect current 
patterns of crime and disorder in the City. This report was brought before 
Members in February 2010. Members determined that an extended 
boundary should be considered for inclusion in the CIZ subject to 
consultation and evidence base. A second report dated 25 March 2010 
was then submitted by North Yorkshire Police detailing the extended area 
and this report was put forward for consultation, with the agreement of 
Members. 
  
Consultation on the revised zone took place between March and May 2010 
by direct mailing. A list of consultees was attached at Annex 2 of the 
Officers report. 
  

Page 4



Following an update from Licensing Officers and North Yorkshire Police, 
Members queried why Blossom Street had been excluded from the CIZ as 
they were aware of crime and disorder problems in the area and suggested 
that the street should remain included. North Yorkshire Police advised that 
incidents in Blossom Street had accounted for 4% of the total crime for the 
CIZ in 2009.  Members commented that they felt there was a fair number 
of incidents in the area to warrant its inclusion in the CIZ. 
  
  
RECOMMENDED: That Council resolves to approve the  proposals 

submitted by North Yorkshire Police, with an 
amendment to retain Blossom Street within the CIZ as 
a result of the consultation responses as additional 
evidence from residents in the area. 

  
REASON: To assist with the effective implementation of the 

Licensing Act 2003 in the city and contribute to the 
reduction of alcohol related crime and disorder in the 
city centre. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Merrett, Chair 
[The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 3.05 pm]. 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 

 
Gambling and Licensing Acts Committee 3 September 2010 
 
Report of the Director of Communities and Neighbourhoods 
 
Licensing Act 2003 Update 

 Summary 
 
1. This report seeks to provide members with an update on the current local position 

on the impact of the of the Licensing Act 2003, up to the 31 March 2010. 
 

 Background 
 
2. There are currently 866 premise licences and 59 club premise certificates in force 

within the authority area.  A breakdown by type is shown at annex 1.  During the 
year 2009/10 26 new premise licence grant applications were received and 42 
variation applications.  15 of the grant and variation applications were determined 
by licensing sub committee hearings. 1 premise licence has also been reviewed, 
members determined to modify licence conditions. 

 
3. This authority also licences 1773 personal licence holders. Personal licences are 

granted for a period of 10 years, unless surrendered or revoked. Within the year 
2009/10 192 new personal licences were granted.  During this period 379 
temporary event notices have been received.  A break down of all applications 
received by the Licensing Section is shown at annex 2. 

 
4. During the year 2009/10 licensing officers have undertaken 250 licenced premises 

visits, 96 of these were multi agency enforcement visits.  At these visit officers 
offer help, support and advice as well as enforcing licensing legislation.  Officers 
general report minor issues, for example the premise licence summaries not been 
displayed, premises not operating refusals books and smoking signage incorrectly 
displayed.  Any issues are always brought to the operators attention as the time of 
the visit and followed by a written report.  During evening enforcement work 
officers have requested that  1 premise closed voluntarily as the designated 
premise supervisors was no longer in place. 

 
5. The authority area has 21 designated public places orders (alcohol exclusion 

zones). The local authority may make an order where it is satisfied that nuisance 
or annoyance to member of the public, or disorder has been associated with the 
consumption of alcohol in that place.  An order makes it an offence for any person 
to drink alcohol in that place after being requested by a police officer not to do so.  
The police also have powers of confiscation. Within 2009/10 a new zone was 
introduced within the Clarence Gardens area. 

 

Agenda Item 4Page 7



6. The licensing section holds bi-monthly licensing enforcement meetings, these are 
attended by representatives of Planning, Environmental Protection Unit, Trading 
Standards, North Yorkshire Police and North Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Service.  
These meetings enable officers to share information, discuss current issues, give 
updates on the process of applications and update officers on changes in 
legislation.  The meetings enable officers to target resources at problem areas and 
premises. 

 
7. Within 2009/10 the councils income from the Licensing Act was £219349.  

However, including responsible authorities costs, it cost the council £255556 to 
administer and enforce the legislation. 

 
 
 Consultation 
 
8.  Responsible authorities were consulted with regards to this report.  The following 

comments have been received.   
 
 Trading Standards 
 
9. City of York Council Trading Standards have now received training and have the 

powers to issue police PND’s (Penalty Notice for Disorder).  When undertaking 
test purchase exercises test purchasers now use covert cameras in shops rather 
than have officers in close proximity.  This is to make the situation more life like.  
During 2009/10 35 test purchases were carried out in off licensed premises.  1 
made an illegal sale, the seller received a formal caution.  

 
 Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) 
 
10. During 2009/10 EPU received 176 complaints relating to 38 licensed premises, this 

is an increase of 8.6% on the previous year.  90 of these complaints were received 
by the out of hours noise patrol.  11 noise abatement notices were served on 7 
different premises.  EPU applied for a review of a premise licence for Ziggy’s 
Nightclub following a number of noise complaints and serving a noise abatement 
notice, the review hearing took place on 18 January 2010, Members determined to 
modify conditions on the licence. 

 
 North Yorkshire Police 
 
11. During the summer of 2009 North Yorkshire Police carried out a campaign within 

the city centre, the Altn8 campaign.  The campaign involved extra police officers 
providing high visibility policing within the city centre on Friday and Saturday 
evenings.  It also involved other agencies, such as North Yorkshire Fire & Rescue 
Service, Safer York Partnership and the health service.  High profile information 
units were placed in a number of city centre locations during the course of the 
evenings providing free water, flip flops, condoms, etc and offered advice and 
information.  During the course of the campaign police saw a reduction in alcohol 
related crime and disorder.  The Police have reported that there has been a 24% 
reduction in crime on the pervious year, an 11% reduction within the city walls.   

 

Page 8



12. In September 2009 a voluntary organisations “Street Angels” started to operate on 
Friday and Saturday evenings.  They operate a high visibility patrol of the city 
centre between 22:00 – 02:00 hours.  Offering assistant were required, they 
supplied water, flip flops, etc and assist in making sure people get home safely. 

 
 Options 
 
13. Option 1 – That Members note the content of this report 
 
14. Option 2 – That Members note the content of this report and request that officers 

report back on an annual basis. 
 
 Analysis 
 
15. No issues have been raised in respect of public safety or the protection of children 

from harm. 
 
16. North Yorkshire Police submitted a report to the council in January 2010 

requesting that the boundaries for the cumulative impact zone be amended to 
reflect changing patterns of crime and disorder in the city centre.   Members 
determined on the 5 February 2010 that an extended boundary should be 
considered for inclusion in the CIZ subject to consultation and an evidence base.  
A second report was submitted by the police in March 2010 including the extended 
boundary, the Chair in consultation with other Members determined that this report 
should go out for formal consultation.  The report went out for formal consultation 
in March 2010. 

 
 Corporate Strategy 
 
17. The Licensing Act 2003 has 4 objectives the prevention of crime and disorder, 

public safety, prevention of public nuisance and the protection of children from 
harm.   

18. The promotion of the licensing objectives will support the Council’s strategy to 
make York a safer city with low crime rates and high opinions of the city’s safety 
record. 

 Implications 
 
19. Financial: None 
 
 Human Resources (HR):  None 
 
 Equalities:  None 
 
 Legal : None 
 
 Crime and Disorder: None 
 
 Information Technology (IT):  None 

Page 9



 
 Property:  None 
 
 Other:  None 
 
 Risk Management 
 
20. There is no risk to the council with respect to this report. 
 
 Recommendations 
 
21.  Members are asked to approve option 2 and instruct officers to provide an annual 

update on the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
22. Reason – To keep Members informed of the effect of their Licensing Policy. 
 

 
Author:  

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

Lesley Cooke 
Senior Licensing Officer 
 
Communities and 
Neighbourhoods  
 
Tel No: 01904 551526 

Andy Hudson  
Assistant Director of Neighbourhoods and 
Community Safety 
 
Report Approved √ Date 19 August 2010 

 

 

Specialist Implications Officer Legal  
Sandra Branigan 
Tel No. 01904 551040 
 

Wards Affected: All  √ 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report. 
 
Annexes:  
 
Annex 1 – Breakdown of licensed premises 
Annex 2 – Breakdown on type and number of licensing application received 

Page 10



ANNEX 1 
 
 
Premise type and number of premises licensed 
 
Café & Restaurants  -  152 
Clubs (golf, football, ruby, gyms, snooker, etc)    -  21  
Education Establishments  -  67 
Function/Conference Venues  -  16 
Hotels / B&B  -  70 
Night Clubs  -  4 
Off Licences  -  154 
Other (museums, bingo halls, boats, elderly peoples homes) -  51 
Public Houses / Bars  -  211 
Private Clubs  -  59 
Takeaways  -  75 
Theatre / Cinemas  -  8 
Village/Commity/Church Halls  -  37 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 2 
2009/10 
 
Premise Licences  
Grants 26  
Variations 42  
Application determined by a hearing 15 
Application successfully mediated 30 
Minor variation 4 
Transfer 69 
DPS variations 202 
Notifications of interest 7 
Change of name/address licence holder 42 
Change of address DPS 12 
Reviews 1 
  
Personal Licences  
Grants 191 
Change of name/address 72 
Replacement licenses 6 
  
TENs 379 
  
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 

 
Gambling and Licensing Acts Committee 3 September 2010 
 
Report of the Director of Communities & Neighbourhoods 
 
Licensing Act 2003  

Rebalancing the Licensing Act 

 Summary 
 
1. This report advises members of recent consultation from the Home Office entitled 

“Rebalancing the Licensing Act”.  It seeks members approval regarding the 
councils response to the consultation. 

 
 Background 

 
2. The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) has be in operation since November 2005.  

During this operation period there has been some revisions however the new 
Government are proposing new measures to rebalance the Act to empower 
individuals, families and local communities to shape and determine local licensing.  
The consultation document is attached at Annex 1. 

 
3. The Government is prosing the following measures: - 
 

(a) Give licensing authorities the power to refuse licence applications or call for a 
licence review without requiring relevant representations from a responsible 
authority. 

 
(b) Remove the need for licensing authorities to demonstrate their decisions on 

licences ‘are necessary’ for (rather than of benefit to) the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.  

 
(c) Reduce the evidential burden of proof required by licensing authorities in making 

decisions on licence applications and licence reviews. 
 

(d) Increase the weight licensing authorities will have to give to relevant 
representations and objection notices from the police. 

 
(e) Simplify Cumulative Impact Policies to allow licensing authorities to have more 

control over outlet density. 
 

(f) Increase the opportunities for local residents or their representative groups to be 
involved in licensing decisions, without regard to their immediate proximity to 
premises. 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 15



(g) Enable more involvement from local health bodies in licensing decisions by 
designating health bodies as a responsible authority and seeking views on 
making health a licensing objective. 

 
(h) Amend the process of appeal to avoid the costly practice of rehearing licensing 

decisions. 
 

(i) Enable licensing authorities to have flexibility in restricting or extending opening 
hours to reflect community concerns or preferences. 

 
(j) Repeal the unpopular power to establish Alcohol Disorder Zones and allow 

licensing authorities to use a simple adjustment to the existing fee system to pay 
for any additional policing needed during late-night opening.   

 
(k) Substantial overhaul of the system of Temporary Event Notices to give the police 

more time to object, enable all responsible authorities to object, increase the 
notification period and reduce the number that can be applied for by personal 
licence holders. 

 
(l) Introduce tough sentences for persistent underage sales. 

 
(m)Trigger automatic licence reviews following persistent underage sales. 

 
(n) Ban the sale of alcohol below cost price. 

 
(o) Enable local authorities to increase licensing fees so that they are based on full 

cost recovery. 
 

(p) Consult on the impact of the Mandatory Licensing Conditions Order and whether 
the current conditions should be removed. 

  
 Consultation 
 
19. The Home Office has consulted a wide range of persons and organisations, as 

indicated in page 7 of the consultation document. The council has only taken a 
limited local consultation on this document.  Due to restricted timescales it has 
been circulated to the councils Environmental Protection and Trading Standard 
Units.  North Yorkshire Police are responding as a force to the document. 

 
 Options 
 
20. The questions in the consultation document are listed in Chapter 11 of the Home 

Office consultation document.  Officers responses are attached at Annex 2.   It is 
recognised that Members may have some different views on the legislation 
operating as a decision making body. 

 
21. Option 1 - Agree with the officers responses as attached at Annex 2. 
 
22. Option 2 - Amend officers responses. 
 

Page 16



 Analysis 
 
23. Officers views are set out in the proposed response to the Home Office at Annex 

2.  As the legislation has been in force since November 2005 in light of experience 
of dealing with the legislation, Officers believe a review of the legisalation and 
guidance is necessary. 

 
 Corporate Strategy 
 
24. The Licensing Act 2003 has 4 objectives the prevention of crime and disorder, 

public safety, prevention of public nuisance and the protection of children from 
harm.   

25. The promotion of the licensing objectives will support the Council’s strategy to 
make York a safer city with low crime rates and high opinions of the city’s safety 
record. 

 Implications 
 
26. Financial: None 
 
 Human Resources (HR):  None 
 
 Equalities:  None 
 
 Legal : None  
 
 Crime and Disorder: None 
 
 Information Technology (IT):  None 
 
 Property:  None 
 
 Other:  None 
 
 Risk Management 
 
27. There is no risk to the council in submitting this response. 
 
 Recommendations 
 
28.  Members are asked to approve option 1 and instruct officer to submit the response 

to the Home Office. 
 

 

 

  

Page 17



Author:  Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Lesley Cooke 
Senior Licensing Officer 
 
Neighbourhoods and 
Community Safety 
 
Tel No: 01904 551526 

Andy Hudson  
Assistant Director of Neighbourhoods and 
Community Safety 
 
Report Approved √ Date 19 August 2010  

 

 

Specialist Implications Officer Legal - Martin Blythe  
Tel No. 01904 551044 
 

Wards Affected: All  √ 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report. 
 
Annexes:  
 
Annex 1 – Rebalancing the Licensing Act – a consultation on empowering individuals, 

families and local communities to shape and determine local licensing. 
 
Annex 2 – List of questions and officers responses. 

Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Annex 2 
Rebalancing the Licensing Act 
 
Question 1:  What do you think the impact would be of making relevant licensing 
authorities responsible authorities? 
 
This would have a positive impact, licensing authorities would have more power and be 
able to take all 4 licensing objectives into consideration, making sure that more robust and 
enforceable licensing conditions are placed on licenses.  As licensing authorities 
undertake a lot of enforcement work and deal with complaints, it is justifiable that they 
should be able to review licenced premise that are not operating in accordance with the 
licensing objectives. 
 
Question 2: What impact do you think reducing the burden of proof on licensing 
authorities will have? 
 
Members will be able to refuse or place conditions on licences if they believe the granting 
of a premise licence will have an impact on the licensing objectives.  This may enable 
members to address more easily the understandable concerns of residents. 
 
Question 3:  Do you have any suggestions about how the licence application 
process could be amended to ensure that applicants consider the impact of their 
licence application on the local area? 
 
With respect to the application form experience has shown that applicants do not fully 
understand the importance of completing Section P (operating schedule), therefore further 
guidance should be included.  This guidance should state that information included in 
Section P will form part of the premise licence. 
 
It should be a legal requirement that the blue display notice must clearly stipulate what has 
been applied for within the  application, for example licensing activities applied for, days 
and times.  It should be a legal requirement that licensing authorities approve the content 
of blue notices. 
 
Question 4:  What would the effect be of requiring licensing authorities to accept all 
representations, notices and recommendations from the police unless there is clear 
evidence that these are not relevant? 
 
This matter is not a concern within the City of York Council as members always take the 
polices issues/concerns/evidence into consideration. 
 
Question 5:  How can licensing authorities encourage greater community and local 
resident involvement? 
 
The City of York Council currently consults widely on the Statement of Licensing Policy.  
However we are restricted by the content of the Statutory Guidance and model policies 
produced by LACORS.  Licensing Authorities should have greater discretion to reflect the 
local situation. 
 
Question 6:  What would be the effect of removing the requirement for interested 
parties to show vicinity when making relevant representations? 
 

Page 45



More representations would be received against application from interested parties who 
would not be affected by the licensed premise (frivolous & vexatious), and therefore more 
licensing hearings would be required.  The question of vicinity does course conflict when 
officers do not agreed that a representor lives within the vicinity. 
 
Questions 7:  Are there any unintended consequences of designating health bodies 
as a responsible authority? 
 
Licensing authorities currently try to liaise with their local PCT’s and ambulance service 
regarding statistics on alcohol related A&E admissions, however they do not record this 
information and do not have the resources to do so. 
 
We are unsure whether health bodies have the resources to deal with licence applications.  
Who would be the responsible authority? 
 
Question 8:  What are the implications in including the prevention of health harm as 
a licensing objectives? 
 
There would be difficulties in burden of proof that one premise has cause ‘health harm’.  
Who would enforce?  What are the implications on premises that are already licensed? 
 
Question 9:  What would be the effect of making community groups interested 
parties under the Licensing Act, and which groups should be included? 
 
Within the City of York Council we class community groups as been interested parties 
(within the definition in Section 13(3) of the Act) if they are within the vicinity of a licensed 
premise and believe they will be affect by said premise.  Our concerns would be with 
regards to the vicinity as this would be equally valid for groups. 
 
This could lead to increased number of representations and therefore more hearings. 
 
Question 10:  What would be the effect of making the default position for the 
magistrates’ court to remit the appeal back to the licensing authority to hear? 
 
Since the introduction of the Licensing Act the City of York Council has only had 5 appeals 
to magistrates. 
 
Appellant could perceive that the licensing authority will make the same decision,  by 
appealing to magistrates a different body hears and determines the applications.  There is 
also the issue of licensing authorities determining applications submitted by their own 
authority. 
 
Question 11:  What would be the effect of amending the legislation so that the 
decision of the licensing authority applies as soon as the premises licence holder 
receives the determination? 
 
This would give licensing authorities more power.  It will be clear to all parties (especially 
interested parties) which licence and conditions are currently in force.  However legislation 
should be in place to protect licensing authorities from any claims for loss of business. 
 
Question 12:  What is the likely impact of extending the flexibility of Early Morning 
Restriction Orders to reflect the needs of the local area? 

Page 46



 
This provides additional powers to licensing authorities if issues arise.  It also needs to be 
extended to cover late night refreshment house as they cause issues within residential 
areas.   
 
Question 13:  Do you have any concerns about repealing Alcohol Disorder Zones? 
 
No. 
 
Question 14:  What are the consequences of removing the evidential requirement 
for Cumulative Impact Policies? 
 
Within City of York Council we have had no problems with providing evidence to support a 
CIZ, however it has proved difficult to establish a logical boundaries, for example streets 
are included within the zone that do not have any licensed premise. 
 
The provision to include a CIZ within the statement of licensing policy is only provided in 
statutory guidance not within the Act, if it was included in legislation its us would be 
strengthened. 
 
Question 15:  Do you agree that the late night levy should be limited to recovery of 
these additional costs?  Do you think that the local authority should be given some 
discretion on how much they can charge under the levy? 
 
Any levy should be set by central government, this will make it easier for licence holders to 
understand.  Guidance will be required on mechanisms to assess policing costs.. 
 
Question 16:  Do you think it would be advantageous to offer such reductions for 
the late night levy? 
 
This would be difficult for licensing authorities to administer/enforce. 
 
Question 17:  Do you agree that the additional costs of these services should be 
funded by the late night levy? 
 
Late night activities do have an impact on the city and funding is required to provide 
services such as taxi marshals, keeping toilets open, street cleaning.  Licensing authorities 
should decide how the levy is spent within their area as they will be aware of the issues.  It 
will also be for licensing authorities to monitor that these services are provided. 
 
Question 18:  Do you believe that giving more autonomy to local authorities 
regarding closing times would be advantageous to cutting alcohol-related crime? 
 
A greater flexibility and discretion for meeting local needs will be better.  Now that premise 
operate later into the evening /  early hours there has been increases in noise nuisance. 
 
Question 19:  What would be the consequences of amending the legislation relating 
to TENs to that: 
 
a)  All the responsible authorities can object to a TEN on all of the licensing 
objectives? 
 

Page 47



This could prevent impact on the local community. However, could create more objections 
and therefore more hearings will take place.  The City of York Council currently circulates 
a copy of the TENs register to a number of responsible authorities for information 
purposes.  Within York we deal with approximately 370 per year. 
 
b)  The police (and other responsible authorities) have five working days to object to 
a TEN? 
 
This would give the police more time to consider TEN’s.  However, this would only work if 
the timescale for dealing with applications is also increased for licensing authorities. 
 
c)  The notification period for a TEN is increased, and is longer for those venues 
already holding a premises licence? 
 
Increasing the notification period would assist licensing authorities, especially if the 
objection timeframe is increased.   
 
d)  Licensing authorities have the discretion to apply existing licence conditions to 
a TEN? 
 
This would be helpful, and will make sure the licensing objectives are upheld. 
 
Question 20:  What would be the consequences of: 
 
a)  Reducing the number of TENs that can be applied for by a personal licence 
holder to 12 per year? 
 
None.  However this is impossible to track nationally. 
 
b)  Restricting the number of TENs that could be applied for in the same vicinity (eg 
a field)? 
 
None.  As applicants do not have to submit a plan(s) as part of the application Licensing 
Authorities are unable to correctly monitor this currently for outside areas. 
 
Question 21:  Do you think 168 hours (7days) is a suitable minimum for the period of 
voluntary closure that can be flexibly applied by police for persistent underage 
selling? 
 
Yes, as time will be needed to implement any requirements requested by the police. 
 
Question 22:  What do you think would be an appropriate upper limit for the period 
of voluntary closure that can be flexibly applied by the police for persistent 
underage selling? 
 
28 days, this will give the police time to submit a review application.  Anything longer than 
this time could affect the traders business. 
 
Question 23:  What do you think the impact will be of making licence reviews 
automatic for those found to be persistently selling alcohol to children? 
 

Page 48



It will give licensing authorities more powers to deal with poor operators.  It will also give 
clarity to licence holders that their licence will be reviewed. 
 
Question 24:  For the purpose of this consultation we are interested in expert view 
on the following. 
 
Issues relating to cost are not a matter that licensing authorities have any experience in 
and therefore we cannot comment. 
 
The City of York Council does have issues with pre loading due to the availability of cheap 
alcohol in supermarkets. 
 
a.  Simple and effective ways to define the ‘cost’ of alcohol 
 
b.  Effective ways to enforce a ban on below cost selling and their costs 
 
c.  The feasibility of using the Mandatory Code of Practice to set a licence condition 
that no sale can be below cost, without defining cost. 
 
Question 25:  Would you be in favour of increasing licence fees based on full cost 
recovery, and what impact would this have? 
 
Based on figures for 2009/10 the City of York Council total income from the Licensing Act 
was £219349, the total expenditure including responsible authorities was £255556, a 
difference of £36207.  Fees should be be based on full cost recovery. 
 
Question 26:  Are you in favour of automatically revoking the premises licence if the 
annual fees have not been paid? 
 
Yes, this has been an issue for this authority with licence holders not paying or selling 
premises and not making sure that licences are transferred. 
 
Question 27:  Have the first set of mandatory conditions that come into force in 
April 2010 had a positive impact on preventing alcohol related crime? 
 
Yes and no.  We have received a number of phone calls from operators checking if their 
drinks promotions are ok, and asking who is a customer with regards to providing drinking 
water. 
 
Question 28:  Would you support the repeal of any or all of the mandatory 
conditions (conditions (a) – (e) above)? 
 
Condition (a) and should be reworded to make it easier for operators to understand and 
therefore adhere to. 
 
Condition (b) is not required as it can be address by rewording condition (a) accordingly 
 
Condition (c) has caused the most confusion, operators have no issues with giving free 
drinking water to customers, however the condition does not define a customer (can 
someone just go into a pub and expect to be served free drinking water all night, or does a 
customer have to buy a drink and then request a free drinking water). 
 

Page 49



Question 29:  Would you support measures to de-regulate the Licensing Act, and 
what sections of the Act in your view could be removed or simplified? 
 
The application forms should be simplified making is easier for applicants to complete and 
easier for responsible authorities and interested parties to read and understand. 
 
The legislation relating to club premise certificates should be simplified or removed, 
making clubs apply for premise licences.  There are currently issues with clubs operating 
outside the legal requirements of the legislation regards membership. 
 
The system should be simplified for small and community premises that only provide 
regulated entertainment. 
 
Licensing Policies should not have to be fully reviewed every 3 years, just as and when the 
licensing authority requires. 

Page 50


	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	4 Licensing Act 2003 - Update.
	Licensing Act Update - ANNEX 1
	Licensing Act Update -  ANNEX 2

	5 Licensing Act 2003 - Rebalancing the Licensing Act.
	Annex 1
	Annex 2 Rebalancing the Licensing Act questions


